
ADDENDUM 1 

TO 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 
TO CONSTRUCT, OPERATE, AND MAINTAIN 

TELECOMMUNICATION TOWERS ON 
COUNTY LAND, AND/ OR  

COLLOCATE EQUIPMENT ON EXISTING 
COUNTY OWNED TOWERS  

 

 

 

 

Consisting of the following:  

1) 3/27/15 Pre-Proposal Meeting Notes 
2) All Questions and Answers  
3) Revised: Attachment 1 County Property with Coordinates Added 
4) Revised: Attachment 3 County Towers with Coordinates Added 

 



 

Erie County RFP to Construct, Operate and Maintain Telecommunication Towers on County 
land, and/or Collocate Equipment on existing County Owned Towers 

Pre-Proposal Meeting Notes 

March 27, 2015 

 

Attendees: Don Carpenter – Carpenter Consulting, Dave Bassanello and Martin Renzoni – 
Transwave, Kerry Slota – Tilson, Marco Morales – Crown Castle. 

Staff – Mark Rountree  

1. History – In recent months, Erie County has been approached by several 
telecommunications companies seeking to build towers on the County property/ collocate 
equipment on existing County towers.  Therefore, we are seeking to collect proposals 
from all interested parties at one time in order to evaluate the proposals against the 
County needs.   
   

2. Submissions –  
 
Submittals at this point are not meant to be comprehensive.   For each site where you 
would like to put the tower, identify the site and provide a general description of the 
tower size, type and base building requirements.  The amount of acreage required for 
equipment/ leased area.     

For collocation sites, identify the site and provide a description of the equipment type and 
amount of acreage required for equipment/ leased area.  

3. Selection Process –  
 
The information submitted will be reviewed by the County using the criteria identified in 
the RFP.  If it is compatible with county operations and telecommunication needs the 



proposals will be asked to submit a detailed proposal for the site, seeking information 
such as proposed lease terms, viewsheds, local zoning compatibility and other items.     

The selection Committee consists of representatives from  

o Department of Environment and Planning which also includes representative from 
Division of Planning, GIS, Division of Sewage Management 

o Information and Support Services 
o Public Works 
o Emergency Services 
o Parks, Recreation and Forestry 
o Law Department 

 

The following should be highlighted:  

Building a tower on a county site will require the wireless provider to allow the County to place 
emergency public safety communications equipment on the tower at no cost to the County. 

Wireless providers seeking to collocate on existing towers will be responsible for structural and 
engineering studies and any structural enhancements to accommodate the carriers equipment.  

Regarding sites – The County owns hundreds of sites, many of them are small and unsuitable for 
locating a cell tower.  The sites that were identified in Attachment 1 and 2 were identified 
through GIS, using the filter of sites over five acres that are owned by the County. If there is 
another site in County ownership that you have identified, we will consider it. 

Collocation – We included existing towers over 50 feet, if there is a tower or telephone pole 
under 50’ on county land that is of interest submit it and it will be considered.    

We will not be considering Cell towers or collocation requests on County parkland due to 
parkland alienation issues.    

County forestry lots are included in the sites will be considered. 

When submitting proposals, proposals must submit a signed copy of Schedule A.   

     Questions:  

1) Will the County be disclosing who have they have been contacted by?   
 
Answer:  No 
 



2) Would it be possible to get an extension to the due date? This is a lot of information to 
gather in a short amount of time.  
 
Answer: I will look into it and will contact you if that is something that we decide to do. 
(See Questions and Answers for Updated information)  
 

3) Would you be able to define the loading requirements needed for emergency equipment?  
Answer: I will look into that and get back to you (See Questions and Answers for 
Updated information)  
 

4) Is there a height requirement? 
Answer: The individual municipalities zoning will still apply. (See Questions and 
Answers for Updated information)  
 

5) Is it the intention to contract with one provider?  

Answer: No, the County may contract with multiple entities.  There are multiple sites, if a 
preferred site is submitted by multiple providers, the selection committee will work with 
the providers to determine the appropriate path forward.  

6) Are water towers included?  
 
Answer: Erie County Water Authority property is not included in this project.   If you 
find Erie County property with a water tower on it, we will consider it.  
 

7) Can the County provide a list of sites that the County is currently leasing emergency 
equipment? 
 
Answer: I can look into that and get back to you. (See Questions and Answers for 
Updated information)  
 

8) Are the insurance requirements required for the initial submittal? 

Answer: No, but they will be required if we enter into a lease agreement with the 
provider. The insurance form is included in the RFP to make the wireless provider aware 
of the County requirements should we enter into an agreement. 

9) Will the County be selling the land? 

Answer: No, the County will only be leasing space.   

 



 

Erie County RFP to Construct, Operate and Maintain Telecommunication Towers on County 
land, and/or Collocate Equipment on existing County Owned Towers 

 

Questions and Answers  

Questions asked during the Pre-Proposal Meeting 

 

1) Will the County be disclosing who have they have been contacted by?   
 
Answer: No 
 

2) Would it be possible to get an extension to the due date?  
 
Answer: No  
 

3) Would you be able to define the loading requirements needed for emergency equipment?  

Answer: This information is not readily available  

4) Is there a height requirement? 

Answer: We intend to follow the individual municipalities zoning regulations.   It should 
be noted that a formal municipal review and permitting process will not be used, but the 
County intends provide a courtesy review to conform with the local zoning standards. 

5) Is it the intention to contract with one provider?  

No, the County may contract with multiple entities.  There are multiple sites, if a 
preferred site is submitted by multiple providers, the selection committee will work with 
the providers to determine the appropriate path forward.  

 



6) Are water towers included?  
 
Erie County Water Authority land and property are not included in this project.   If you 
find Erie County land with a water tower on it, we will consider it.  
 

7) Can the County provide a list of sites that the County is currently leasing emergency 
equipment? 
 
This information is not readily available. 
 

8) Are the insurance requirements required for the initial submittal? 

No, but they will be required if we enter into a lease agreement with the provider. The 
insurance form is included in the RFP to make the wireless provider aware of the County 
requirements should we enter into a agreement. 

9) Will the County be selling the land? 

Answer: No, the County will only be leasing space.   

 

Additional Questions and Answers submitted after the Pre-Proposal Meeting  

10) Will the County consider alternate proposals, such as a proposal to actively market all of 
the County’s properties, rather than bids on specific sites? 

 
Answer: The County will not consider alternate proposals for the marketing of the 
County’s properties.  

 
11)    Can the county provide a LAT and LON on each site to correlate to each SBL Number? 

 
Answer:  The latitude and longitude of each tower and site is attached.  
 

12)     Does the county have any existing leases with any wireless carriers or communication 
companies these towers?  If so, can you specify which locations/towers? 
      
Answer: The information is not readily available 
  
 

13)  On the county existing towers, could the county provide any existing equipment 
inventories and structural loads and analyses? 



Answer: The information is not readily available.   

 

 



# SBL ADDNUM ADDNAME ACRES DESCRIPTION OWNER1 MUNIC X Y
1 96.00-4-13 11295 WALDEN AVE 57.309 Vac farmland COUNTY OF ERIE Alden -78.56759102 42.92725468
2 96.00-5-9.1 11581 WALDEN AVE 103.101 Correctional COUNTY OF ERIE Alden -78.55933513 42.93234424
3 85.00-3-18 0 GENESEE ST 44.121 Rural vac>10 COUNTY OF ERIE Alden -78.56766197 42.95035477
4 96.00-2-20 11580 WALDEN AVE 146.72 Aged - home COUNTY OF ERIE Alden -78.55831166 42.93808525
5 81.02-1-1 6205 MAIN ST 116.556 College/univ ERIE COMMUNITY COLLEAmherst -78.72169562 42.96137225
6 186.00-5-6.111 119 ELLICOTT RD 33.765 Highway gar COUNTY OF ERIE Aurora -78.68613386 42.73044603
7 257.00-1-8 5300 RICE RD 701.017 Co. reforest ERIE CO FOREST LAND Boston -78.78551149 42.62118108
8 124.29-1-1 1080 HARLEM RD 5.239 Highway gar ERIE CO HIGHWAY Cheektowaga -78.78696305 42.87366238
9 124.00-5-29 0 CAYUGA CREEK RD 34.898 Flood contrl COUNTY OF ERIE Cheektowaga -78.75862641 42.87646096

10 113.19-2-12 715 CAYUGA CREEK RD 13.578 Flood contrl ERIE COUNTY SEWER DIS  Cheektowaga -78.76068961 42.878056
11 102.04-3-51 3335 BROADWAY ST 5.961 Police/fire COUNTY OF ERIE Cheektowaga -78.74990698 42.90041087
12 52.06-2-1 201 TWO MILE CREEK RD 5.779 Vacant indus COUNTY OF ERIE City of Tonawanda -78.90666855 43.0068946
13 72.07-1-2 5105 SALT RD 7.409 Highway gar COUNTY OF ERIE Clarence -78.58501939 42.98386257
14 316.00-2-15 0 QUAKER ST 8.223 Vacant comm COUNTY OF ERIE Collins -78.93231843 42.52614565
15 291.00-1-13 0 SHARP ST 64.159 Co. reforest ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT Concord -78.66634754 42.578964
16 291.00-1-8 0 SOUTH HILL RD 274.288 Co. reforest ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT Concord -78.67972999 42.58985619
17 307.00-2-49 0 SHARP ST 284.494 Co. reforest ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT Concord -78.66658078 42.56546116
18 307.00-1-16 0 GENESEE RD 83.736 Vac farmland COUNTY OF ERIE Concord -78.67331471 42.55874274
19 252.00-3-4.1 0 SOUTH MAIN ST 46.125 Rural vac>10 COUNTY OF ERIE Evans -79.00748154 42.61560981
20 235.05-1-15 8519 LAKE SHORE RD 6.995 Vacant comm ERIE COUNTY SEWER DIS  Evans -79.05757979 42.65319918
21 220.00-1-18 0 LAKE SHORE RD 37.363 Sewage ERIE COUNTY SEWER DIS  Evans -79.05694192 42.65571673
22 220.00-1-16 0 BENNETT RD 62.504 Rural vac>10 COUNTY OF ERIE SEWER  Evans -79.05234244 42.65636454
23 193.00-1-9 6413 LAKE SHORE RD 11.53 Sewage ERIE COUNTY SEWER DIS  Evans -78.96480918 42.71053993
24 195.00-4-43 0 HICKOX RD 7.986 Res vac land COUNTY OF ERIE Hamburg -78.86065729 42.70231809
25 195.11-3-2 0 LAKEVIEW RD 5.868 Motr veh srv COUNTY OF ERIE Hamburg -78.84575913 42.71645705
26 160.09-5-5 0 BIG TREE RD 10.35 Rural vac>10 COUNTY OF ERIE Hamburg -78.82828325 42.77794188
27 159.00-1-24 3690 LAKESHORE RD 43.366 Sewage COUNTY OF ERIE Hamburg -78.85073003 42.78584939
28 160.16-1-12 4041 SOUTHWESTERN BLVD 42.428 College/univ COUNTY OF ERIE Hamburg -78.79800364 42.77222017
29 264.00-1-3 0 WAGNER RD 195.076 Co. reforest ERIE CO PARKS DEPT Holland -78.46620238 42.61178124
30 264.00-1-2 0 WILKINS RD 252.708 Co. reforest ERIE CO PARKS DEPT Holland -78.46798896 42.62264292
31 247.00-4-6 0 OLEAN RD 91.616 Co. reforest ERIE CO PARKS DEPT Holland -78.51813699 42.63152104
32 248.00-1-5 0 E HOLLAND RD 98.533 Co. reforest ERIE CO PARKS DEPT Holland -78.46544106 42.64022546
33 231.00-3-12.2 457 N MAIN ST 6.912 Sewage ERIE CO SEWER DIST #3 Holland -78.54902004 42.65085649



34 116.00-2-47 0 BOWEN RD 5.972 Res vac land COUNTY OF ERIE - PARKSLancaster -78.63526259 42.88553336
35 105.00-5-38 125 CEMETERY RD 20.836 Warehouse COUNTY OF ERIE Lancaster -78.6362746 42.90507875
36 172.07-1-8.1 5885 BIG TREE RD 6.556 Educatn fac COUNTY OF ERIE Orchard Park -78.76801974 42.76319571
37 161.17-6-1 0 BIG TREE RD 22.077 Vacant comm COUNTY OF ERIE Orchard Park -78.78686382 42.76951227
38 161.00-5-1 4196 ABBOTT RD 56.938 College/univ ERIE COMMUNITY COLLE  Orchard Park -78.79436392 42.77109437
39 161.00-5-3.1 1 BILLS DR 43.341 Parking lot ERIE COMMUNITY COLLE  Orchard Park -78.79150119 42.77374019
40 161.00-5-16.1 1 BILLS DR 113.354 Stadium COUNTY OF ERIE Orchard Park -78.78598104 42.77475797
41 324.00-1-6 0 MIDDLE RD 198.211 Co. reforest ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT Sardinia -78.57546388 42.53484795
42 324.00-1-5 0 MIDDLE RD 217.469 Co. reforest ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT Sardinia -78.58383155 42.5367507
43 309.00-2-15 0 GENESEE RD 128.918 Co. reforest ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT Sardinia -78.57372397 42.54401255
44 309.00-2-16 0 GENESEE RD 95.461 Co. reforest ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT Sardinia -78.56844351 42.54545002
45 309.00-2-12 11069 GENESEE RD 196.05 Chd/adt camp ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT Sardinia -78.58226404 42.54621844
46 309.00-1-23 0 GENESEE RD 98.92 Co. reforest ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT Sardinia -78.57260946 42.55624356
47 309.00-1-24 0 GENESEE RD 99.327 Co. reforest ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT Sardinia -78.56842411 42.55626393
48 310.00-1-3 11929 WARNER GULF RD 322.958 Co. reforest ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT Sardinia -78.5446052 42.55663086
49 292.00-3-1 0 FOOT RD 94.974 Co. reforest ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT Sardinia -78.61729049 42.58267468
50 280.00-1-29 0 MILLER AVE 93.435 Co. reforest ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT Sardinia -78.47208439 42.59371709
51 280.00-1-18 0 WAGNER RD 12.676 Co. reforest ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT Sardinia -78.46312 42.60599433
52 52.20-2-5 1870 MILITARY RD 5.155 Highway gar COUNTY OF ERIE HIGHWTonawanda -78.88522781 42.98882597
53 114.08-8-10.2 0 RUTHERFORD PL 5.753 Vacant comm THE COUNTY OF ERIE Village of Depew / C -78.70510081 42.89704645
54 103.19-1-16 0 BROADWAY ST 13.61 Vacant comm COUNTY OF ERIE Village of Depew / C -78.71803123 42.90264057
55 103.16-1-5.1 0 BROADWAY ST 19.892 Vacant rural COUNTY OF ERIE Village of Depew / C -78.70782294 42.90753453
56 104.13-2-4.1 0 TRANSIT RD 16.769 Vacant comm COUNTY OF ERIE Village of Depew / C -78.70179207 42.90770642
57 135.19-1-40 5111 SENECA ST 5.094 Res vac land COUNTY OF ERIE West Seneca -78.7128133 42.83357914
58 135.16-6-5 0 MEADOWDALE LN 7.083 Res vac land COUNTY OF ERIE West Seneca -78.70563444 42.83913691
59 134.05-2-4.11 0 INDIAN CHURCH RD 8.494 Res vac land COUNTY OF ERIE West Seneca -78.79199331 42.84848815



NUM SBL ADDNUM STREET MUNIC OWNER1 OWNER2 X Y
1 197.00-3-35 0 CHESTNUT RIDGE RD Orchard Park ERIE COUNTY PARKS DEPT C/O ATTN: O M EDGAR -78.74175724 42.71995616
2 186.00-5-6.111 119 ELLICOTT RD Aurora COUNTY OF ERIE COUNTY HALL -78.68609641 42.73078432
3 161.00-5-1 4196 ABBOTT RD Orchard Park ERIE COMMUNITY COLLEGE SOWILLIAM REUTER -78.79643207 42.77159838
4 257.00-1-8 5300 RICE RD Boston ERIE CO FOREST LAND BUREAU OF FORESTRY -78.7810678 42.61071011
5 306.00-1-3.2 0 MOORE RD Concord COUNTY OF ERIE  -78.72160781 42.56757443
6 310.00-1-3 11929 WARNER GULF RD Sardinia ERIE CO FORESTRY DEPT  -78.55037351 42.55202573
7 159.00-1-24 3690 LAKESHORE RD Hamburg COUNTY OF ERIE  -78.85024748 42.78704804
8 52.20-2-5 1870 MILITARY RD Tonawanda COUNTY OF ERIE HIGHWAY DEPT -78.88579992 42.98848025
9 111.14-5-1 372 MICHIGAN City of Buffalo COUNTY OF ERIE THE DPW/BUILDINGS & GROUNDS -78.8699604 42.88203204
10 220.00-1-18 8443 LAKE SHORE RD Evans ERIE COUNTY SEWER DISTRICT  -79.05763372 42.65609171
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